## UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

CURRENT REPORT
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): June 7, 2022

### CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)

Emerging Growth Company □

1-13265 (Commission File Number)

76-0511406 (IRS Employer Identification No.)

1111 Louisiana Houston Texas (Address of principal executive offices)

77002 (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (713) 207-1111 Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions (see General Instruction A.2. below): Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425) Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12) Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b)) Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c)) Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: Trading Name of each exchange Title of each class Symbol(s) on which registered 6.625% Senior Notes due 2037 The New York Stock Exchange n/a Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2).

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any

new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. □

#### Item 8.01. Other Events

CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp. ("CERC") and CenterPoint Energy, Inc. ("CenterPoint Energy") anticipate completing an internal restructuring (the "Proposed Restructuring") on June 30, 2022, pursuant to which CERC will acquire 100% of: (i) the issued and outstanding capital stock of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. ("Indiana Gas") and (ii) the issued and outstanding membership interests of Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, LLC ("VEDO"). Currently, the capital stock of Indiana Gas and VEDO are held by Vectren Utility Holdings, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CenterPoint Energy ("VUHI"). VEDO will convert from an Ohio corporation to an Ohio limited liability company. As a result of the Proposed Restructuring, Indiana Gas and VEDO will become direct wholly-owned subsidiaries of CERC and Southern Indiana Gas and Electric Company will remain a wholly-owned subsidiary of VUHI.

This Current Report on Form 8-K is being filed to provide the combined financial statements of Indiana Gas and VEDO, which are incorporated herein by reference.

#### Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.

The audited combined financial statements of Indiana Gas and VEDO as of December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended and the related Independent Auditor's Report are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1.

The unaudited combined financial statements of Indiana Gas and VEDO as of March 31, 2022 and for the three-month period then ended are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2.

#### (d) Exhibits.

EXHIBIT NUMBER	EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION
23.1	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
99.1	Audited combined financial statements of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. and Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc. as of December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended and the related Independent Auditor's Report.
99.2	<u>Unaudited combined financial statements of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. and Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc. as of March 31, 2022 and for the three-month period then ended.</u>
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document

#### SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

#### CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP.

Date: June 7, 2022

By: /s/ Stacey L. Peterson

Stacey L. Peterson

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

#### CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-238617-02 on Form S-3 of our report dated March 1, 2022, relating to the combined financial statements of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. and Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc., appearing in this Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 7, 2022.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas June 7, 2022

#### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND

### VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended December 31, 2021

#### Contents

	Page Number
Audited Financial Statements	
<u>Definitions</u>	1
Independent Auditor's Report	2
Combined Balance Sheet	4-5
Combined Statement of Income	6
Combined Statement of Cash Flows	7
Combined Statement of Common Shareholder's Equity	8
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements	9-26

**DEFINITIONS** 

AFUDC Allowance for funds used during construction

ARO Asset Retirement Obligation
ARP Alternative revenue program

ASC Accounting Standards Codification
ASU Accounting Standard Update

COVID-19 Novel coronavirus disease 2019, and any mutations or variants thereof, and related global outbreak that

was subsequently declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization

CSIA Compliance and System Improvement Adjustment

DRR Distribution Replacement Rider

EEFC Energy Efficiency Funding Component
EEFR Energy Efficiency Funding Rider
EPA Environmental Protection Agency

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

2021 February Winter Storm Event The extreme and unprecedented winter weather event in February 2021 resulting in natural gas supply

shortages and increased wholesale prices of natural gas in the United States, primarily due to prolonged

freezing temperatures.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

IDEM Indiana Department of Environmental Management

IURC Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission

MGP Manufactured gas plant
PRP Potentially responsible party

PUCO Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
SERP Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

SRC Sales Reconciliation Component

TCJA Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Director of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. and Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc.

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the combined financial statements of Indiana Gas Company, Inc. and Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc. (the "companies"), which comprise the combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related combined statements of income, cash flows, and common shareholder's equity for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements (collectively referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the companies as of December 31, 2021, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the companies and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the companies' ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the companies' internal control.
   Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP Indianapolis, Indiana March 1, 2022

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ASSETS

	Dece	As of mber 31, 2021
	(i	n millions)
Current Assets:		
Cash & cash equivalents	\$	7
Accounts receivable - less reserves of \$1		97
Accrued unbilled revenues - less reserves of less than \$1		88
Accounts receivable - affiliated companies		9
Material and supplies		9
Natural gas inventory		24
Non-trading derivative assets		8
Regulatory assets		82
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		33
Total current assets		357
Property, Plant and Equipment, net		3,345
Other Assets:		
Goodwill		199
Regulatory assets		372
Non-trading derivative assets		4
Other assets		23
Total other assets		598
Total Assets	\$	4,300

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

#### LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

	Decemb	As of ber 31, 2021
Current Liabilities:	(in i	millions)
Accounts payable	\$	139
Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies		285
Taxes accrued		60
Interest accrued		4
Customer deposits		29
Other current liabilities		37
Total current liabilities		554
Other Liabilities:		
Deferred income taxes		373
Benefit obligations - affiliated companies		18
Regulatory liabilities		735
Other liabilities		89
Total other liabilities		1,215
Long-term Debt:		
Long-term debt - net of current maturities		96
Long-term debt - affiliated companies		1,076
Total long-term debt, net		1,172
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8)		
Shareholder's Equity:		
Common stock (no par value)		784
Retained earnings		575
Total shareholder's equity		1,359
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity	\$	4,300

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME

	Year Ended <u>December 31, 2021</u>
	(in millions)
Utility revenues	\$ 952
Expenses:	
Utility natural gas	370
Operation and maintenance	182
Depreciation & amortization	161
Taxes other than income taxes	56
Total	769
Operating Income	183
Other Income (Expense):	
Interest expense	(45)
Other income (expense), net	14
Income Before Income Taxes	152
Income taxes	21
Net Income	\$ 131

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

	Decen	ear Ended nber 31, 2021 n millions)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:		
Net income	\$	131
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities:		
Depreciation & amortization		161
Deferred income taxes		9
Changes in working capital accounts:		
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net		(34)
Accounts receivable/payable - affiliated companies		29
Inventory		(8)
Accounts payable		(16)
Net regulatory assets and liabilities		(126)
Other current assets and liabilities		30
Other assets and liabilities		15
Other, net		(1)
Net cash provided by operating activities		190
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:		
Capital expenditures, excluding AFUDC equity		(428)
Other, net		3
Net cash used in investing activities		(425)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:		
Increase in notes payable - affiliated companies		254
Dividend to parent		(17)
Net cash provided by financing activities		237
Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents		2
Cash, Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period		5
Cash, Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$	7

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF COMMON SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

	mmon tock	Ear	ained <u>nings</u> illions)	<u>Total</u>
Balance as of December 31, 2020	\$ 784	\$	461	\$1,245
Net income	_		131	131
Dividends	_		(17)	(17)
Balance as of December 31, 2021	\$ 784	\$	575	\$1,359

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### 1. Organization and Nature of Operations

Indiana Gas Company, Inc. (CenterPoint Energy Indiana North or CEI North) is a public utility that provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers located in central and southern Indiana. Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc. (CenterPoint Energy Ohio or CEOH) is a public utility that provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers located near Dayton in west-central Ohio. CEI North and CEOH are both direct, wholly owned subsidiaries of Vectren Utility Holdings, Inc. (VUHI). VUHI is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Vectren Corporation (Vectren). Vectren, a wholly owned subsidiary of CenterPoint Energy, Inc. (collectively with its subsidiaries, CenterPoint Energy) and an Indiana corporation, is an energy holding company headquartered in Evansville, Indiana, and was organized on June 10, 1999.

#### 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

#### **Basis of Presentation**

These combined financial statements include the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of CEI North and CEOH and the combined entity is collectively referred to as the "Company." These financial statements have been combined as CEI North and CEOH were under common ownership and management and reflect the Company on a historical basis without pushdown accounting adjustments resulting from the Vectren merger with CenterPoint Energy in 2019.

The Company consists of a single reportable segment which provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers in Indiana and Ohio. The Company's chief operating decision maker views net income as the measure of profit or loss for its reportable segment.

#### Use of Estimates

In applying accounting policies, the Company makes judgments, assumptions, and estimates that affect the amounts reported in these combined financial statements and related footnotes. Examples of transactions for which estimation techniques are used include valuing deferred tax obligations, unbilled revenue, uncollectible accounts, regulatory assets and liabilities, asset retirement obligations, and derivatives and other financial instruments. Estimates also impact the depreciation of property, plant, and equipment and the testing of goodwill and other assets for impairment. Recorded estimates are revised when better information becomes available or when actual amounts can be determined. Actual results could differ from current estimates.

#### Cash & Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase are considered cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued interest to approximate fair value.

#### Accounts Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Management reviews historical write-offs, current available information, and reasonable and supportable forecasts to estimate and establish allowance for credit losses. Account balances are charged off against the allowance when management determines it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. See Note 5 for further information about regulatory deferrals of bad debt expense related to COVID-19.

#### **Inventories**

In most circumstances, the Company's inventory components are recorded using an average cost method; however, natural gas in storage at CEI North is recorded using the Last In – First Out (LIFO) method. Inventory related to the Company's regulated operations is valued at historical cost consistent with ratemaking treatment. Materials and supplies are recorded as inventory when purchased and subsequently charged to expense or capitalized to plant when installed.

Based on the average cost of gas purchased during December 2021, the cost of replacing CEI North's inventories carried at LIFO cost was more than carrying value as of December 31, 2021 by \$10 million. Due to CEOH's Exit of the Merchant Function, CEOH does not hold a balance in natural gas inventory as it does not sell natural gas directly to customers. In addition, no storage facilities are owned by CEOH.

#### Long-lived Assets and Goodwill

The Company records property, plant and equipment at historical cost and expenses repair and maintenance costs as incurred.

The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. For rate regulated businesses, recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by determining if a capital disallowance from a regulator is probable through monitoring the outcome of rate cases and other proceedings. No long-lived asset impairments were recorded in 2021.

The Company performs goodwill impairment tests at least annually and evaluate goodwill when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be recoverable. The Company recognizes a goodwill impairment by the amount a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill within that reporting unit. The Company includes deferred tax assets and liabilities within its reporting unit's carrying value for the purposes of annual and interim impairment tests, regardless of whether the estimated fair value reflects the disposition of such assets and liabilities.

The Company performed the annual goodwill impairment tests in the third quarter of 2021 and determined that no goodwill impairment charge was required.

#### **Depreciation and Amortization Expense**

The Company computes depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method based on economic lives or regulatory-mandated recovery periods. Amortization expense includes amortization of certain regulatory assets.

#### Capitalization of AFUDC

The Company capitalizes AFUDC as a component of projects under construction and amortizes it over the assets' estimated useful lives once the assets are placed in service. AFUDC represents the composite interest cost of borrowed funds and a reasonable return on the equity funds used for construction as the Company applies the guidance for accounting for regulated operations. Although AFUDC increases both property, plant and equipment and earnings, it is realized in cash when the assets are included in rates.

	Year Ende <u>December 31,</u> (in million	2021
AFUDC - borrowed funds (1)	\$	1
AFUDC - equity funds (2)		2

- (1) Included in Interest and other finance charges on the Company's Statement of Combined Income.
- (2) Included in Other Income (Expense) on the Company's Statement of Combined Income.

#### Regulation

Retail public utility operations affecting Indiana customers are subject to regulation by the IURC, and retail public utility operations affecting Ohio customers are subject to regulation by the PUCO. The Company's accounting policies give recognition to the ratemaking and accounting practices authorized by these agencies.

#### Refundable or Recoverable Gas Costs

All metered gas rates in Indiana contain a gas cost adjustment clause that allows the Company to charge for changes in the cost of purchased gas. The net energy cost of purchased power, subject to a variable benchmark based on NYMEX natural gas prices, is also recovered through regulatory proceedings. The Company records any under-or-over-recovery resulting from gas adjustment clauses each month in revenues. A corresponding regulatory asset or liability is recorded until the under-or-over-recovery is billed or refunded to utility customers. The cost of gas sold is charged to operating expense as delivered to customers.

#### Regulatory Assets & Liabilities

Regulatory assets represent certain incurred costs, which will result in probable future cash recoveries from customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent probable expenditures by the Company for removal costs or future reductions in revenues associated with amounts to be credited to customers through the ratemaking process. The Company continually assesses the recoverability of costs recognized as regulatory assets and the ability to recognize new regulatory assets associated with its regulated utility operations. The Company records pre-tax expense for (i) probable disallowances of capital investments and (ii) customer refund obligations and costs deferred in regulatory assets when recovery of such amounts is no longer considered probable. Given the current regulatory environment in its jurisdictions, the Company believes such accounting for regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities is appropriate.

The Company collects an estimated cost of removal of its utility plant through depreciation rates established in regulatory proceedings. The Company records amounts collected in advance of expenditure as a *Regulatory liability* because the liability does not meet the threshold of an asset retirement obligation.

#### **Asset Retirement Obligations**

A portion of removal costs related to interim retirements of gas utility pipeline, and reclamation activities meet the definition of an ARO. The Company records the fair value of a liability for a legal ARO in the period in which it is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the Company capitalizes a cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The liability is accreted, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, the Company settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss. To the extent regulation is involved, regulatory assets and liabilities result when accretion and amortization is adjusted to match rates established by regulators and any gain or loss is subject to deferral.

#### **Derivative Instruments**

The Company is exposed to various market risks. These risks arise from transactions entered into in the normal course of business. The Company, from time to time, utilizes derivative instruments such as physical forward contracts, to mitigate the impact of changes in commodity prices on operating results and cash flows. Such derivatives are recognized in the Company's Combined Balance Sheet at their fair value unless the Company elects the normal purchase and sales exemption for qualified physical transactions. A derivative may be designated as a normal purchase or normal sale if the intent is to physically receive or deliver the product for use or sale in the normal course of business.

#### **Environmental Costs**

The Company expenses or capitalizes environmental expenditures, as appropriate, depending on their future economic benefit. The Company expenses amounts that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations that do not have future economic benefit. The Company records undiscounted liabilities related to these future costs when environmental assessments and/or remediation activities are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

#### **Income Taxes**

Each CEI North and CEOH are included in CenterPoint Energy's consolidated federal income tax return. Vectren and certain subsidiaries are also included in various unitary or consolidated state income tax returns with CenterPoint Energy. In other state jurisdictions, Vectren and certain subsidiaries continue to file separate state tax returns. The Company calculates the provision for income taxes and income tax liabilities for each jurisdiction using a separate return method.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. A valuation allowance is established against deferred tax assets for which management believes realization is not considered to be more likely than not. The Company recognizes interest and penalties as a component of *income tax expense* (benefit), as applicable, in the Combined Statement of Income.

To the extent certain excess deferred income taxes of the Company may be recoverable or payable through future rates, regulatory assets and liabilities have been recorded, respectively.

#### Revenue Policy

Revenue is recognized when obligations under the terms of a contract with the customer are satisfied. Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for transferring goods or providing services. The satisfaction of performance obligation occurs when the transfer of goods and services occur, which may be at a point in time or over time, resulting in revenue being recognized over the course of the underlying contract or at a single point in time based upon the delivery of services to customers.

#### Excise & Utility Receipts Taxes

Excise taxes and a portion of utility receipts taxes are included in rates charged to customers. Accordingly, the Company records these taxes received as a component of utility revenues, which totaled \$19 million in 2021. Expense associated with excise and utility receipts taxes are recorded as a component of *Taxes other than income taxes*.

#### Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are valued and disclosed at fair value. Nonfinancial assets and liabilities include the initial measurement of an asset retirement obligation or the use of fair value in goodwill and long-lived assets impairment tests. FASB guidance provides the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

- Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company has the ability to access.
- Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include
  - quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
  - quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
  - inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
  - inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

#### 3. Revenue

In accordance with ASC 606, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or services.

The Company determines that disaggregating revenue into certain categories achieves the disclosure objective to depict how the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

The Company provides commodity service to customers at rates, charges, and terms and conditions included in tariffs approved by regulators. The Company's utilities bill customers monthly and have the right to consideration from customers in an amount that corresponds directly with the performance obligation satisfied to date. The performance obligation is satisfied and revenue is recognized upon the delivery of services to customers. The Company records revenues for services and goods delivered but not billed at the end of an accounting period in *Accrued unbilled revenues*, derived from estimated unbilled consumption and tariff rates. The Company's revenues are also adjusted for the effects of regulation including tracked operating expenses, infrastructure replacement mechanisms and a decoupling mechanism. The decoupling mechanism is considered an ARP, which is excluded from the scope of ASC 606. Revenues from ARPs are not material to any reporting period. Customers are billed monthly and payment terms, set by the regulator, require payment within a month of billing. The Company's revenues are not subject to significant returns, refunds, or warranty obligations.

The following table disaggregates revenues by major source:

	Decemb	r Ended per 31, 2021 millions)
Revenue from contracts	\$	938
Other (1)		14
Total Revenues	\$	952

(1) Primarily consists of income from ARPs. ARPs are contracts between the utility and its regulators, not between the utility and a customer. The Company recognizes ARP revenue as other revenues when the regulator-specified conditions for recognition have been met. Upon recovery of ARP revenue through incorporation in rates charged for utility service to customers, ARP revenue is reversed and recorded as revenue from contracts with customers. The recognition of ARP revenues and the reversal of ARP revenues upon recovery through rates charged for utility service may not occur in the same period.

#### Contract Balances

The Company does not have any material contract balances (right to consideration for services already provided or obligations to provide services in the future for consideration already received). Substantially all the Company's accounts receivable results from contracts with customers.

#### 4. Property, Plant and Equipment

#### (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment includes the following:

	As of December 31, 2021						
	Weighted Average Useful Lives	Property, Plant and Equipment, Gross		Accumulated Depreciation and <u>Amortization</u> (in millions)		Property, Plant and Equipment, Net	
Natural gas distribution	30	\$	5,052	\$	1,707	\$	3,345
Other property	_		4		4		_
Total		\$	5,056	\$	1,711	\$	3,345

#### (b) Depreciation and Amortization

The following table presents depreciation and amortization expense:

	Decemb	Ended er 31, 2021 nillions)
Depreciation	\$	156
Amortization of regulatory assets		4
Other amortization		1
Total	\$	161

#### (c) ARO

The Company recorded AROs relating to gas pipelines abandoned in place. The estimates of future liabilities were developed using historical information, and where available, quoted prices from outside contractors.

A reconciliation of the changes in the ARO liability recorded in Other liabilities in the Company's Combined Balance Sheet is as follows:

	December 31, 2021 (in millions)	
Beginning balance	\$ 66	
Accretion expense (1)	3	
Revisions in estimates	2	
Ending balance	\$ 71	

(1) Reflected in non-current Regulatory assets on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet.

#### 5. Regulatory Assets & Liabilities

The following is a list of regulatory assets and liabilities reflected on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021.

	December 31, 2021 (in millions)	
Regulatory Assets:	(	ininons)
Future amounts recoverable from ratepayers related to:		
Net deferred income taxes	\$	3
Total future amounts recoverable from ratepayers		3
Amounts deferred for future recovery related to:		
Extraordinary gas costs (1)		63
Ohio cost recovery riders		51
Total amounts deferred for future recovery		114
Amounts currently recovered in customer rates related to:		
Indiana authorized trackers		24
Indiana authorized deferrals		125
Ohio authorized trackers		68
Ohio authorized cost deferrals		100
Gas recovery costs (1)		19
Loss on reacquired debt		1
Total amounts recovered in customer rates		337
Total Regulatory Assets	\$	454
Total Current Regulatory Assets	\$	82
Total Non-current Regulatory Assets	\$	372
Regulatory Liabilities:		
Regulatory liabilities related to TCJA	\$	125
Estimated removal costs		542
Other regulatory liabilities		68
Total Regulatory Liabilities	\$	735

(1) Included in current regulatory assets on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet.

Of the \$337 million currently being recovered in customer rates, \$93 million related to Ohio deferrals is earning a return. The weighted average recovery period of regulatory assets currently being recovered in base rates (excluding trackers), not earning a return, which totals \$133 million, is 6 years. The remainder of the regulatory assets are being recovered timely through periodic recovery mechanisms. The Company has rate orders for all deferred costs not yet in rates and therefore believes future recovery is probable.

#### February 2021 Winter Storm Event

In February 2021, the Company experienced an extreme and unprecedented winter weather event that resulted in prolonged freezing temperatures, which impacted their businesses. The February 2021 Winter Storm Event impacted wholesale prices of the Company's natural gas purchases and their ability to serve customers in their service territories, including due to the reduction in available natural gas capacity and impacts to the Company's natural gas supply portfolio activities, and the effects of weather on their systems and their ability to transport natural gas, among other things. The overall natural gas market, including the markets from which the Company sourced a significant portion of their natural gas for their operations, experienced significant impacts caused by the February 2021 Winter Storm Event, resulting in extraordinary increases in the price of natural gas purchased by the Company.

The Company deferred under-recovered natural gas cost as regulatory assets under existing recovery mechanisms and are seeking recovery of the increased cost of natural gas. As of December 31, 2021, the Company, through CEI North, has recorded current regulatory assets of \$63 million associated with the February 2021 Winter Storm Event through the gas cost recovery mechanism.

Amounts for the under recovery of natural gas costs are reflected in regulatory assets on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet. Recovery of natural gas costs within the regulatory assets are probable. The Company has begun recovery of natural gas costs attributable to the February 2021 Winter Storm Event.

#### **COVID-19 Regulatory Matters**

Governors, public utility commissions and other authorities in the states in which the Company operate have issued a number of different orders related to the COVID-19 pandemic, including orders addressing customer non-payment and disconnection. The IURC and PUCO have either (1) issued orders to record a regulatory asset for incremental bad debt expenses related to COVID-19, including costs associated with the suspension of disconnections and payment plans or (2) provided authority to recover bad debt expense through an existing tracking mechanism. The IURC issued an order in November 2021 approving a settlement in CEI North's recent base rate case which included recovery of the regulatory asset. The Company has recorded incremental uncollectible receivables to the associated regulatory asset of \$1 million, as of December 31, 2021.

#### 6. Transactions with Other Vectren Companies and Affiliates

#### Support Services & Purchases

Affiliates of CenterPoint Energy and Vectren provide corporate and general and administrative services to the Company and allocates certain costs to the Company. These services are billed to the Company at actual cost, either directly or as an allocation using various allocators, including number of employees, number of customers and/or the level of payroll, revenue contribution and capital expenditures. Affiliates of CenterPoint Energy provide other miscellaneous services, including geographic services and other management support. These services are billed at actual cost, and the charges are not necessarily indicative of what would have been incurred had CenterPoint Energy's subsidiaries not been affiliates. Amounts owed for support services and purchases as of December 31, 2021 are included in *Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies*.

	 Ended
	 er 31, 2021 illions)
Corporate allocations included in Operation and Maintenance expense	\$ 58

Certain cash payments from the Company's customers are received by VUHI. The Accounts receivable - affiliated companies reflects amounts receivable from VUHI for this activity.

The table below presents transactions between the Company and its parent, VUHI.

	Year Ended December 31, 20	
	(in millions)	
Cash dividends paid to parent	\$	17
Property, plant and equipment from parent (1)		97

(1) Property, plant and equipment purchased for cash from VUHI at its net carrying value on the date of purchase

#### Retirement Plans & Other Postretirement Benefits

As of December 31, 2021, Vectren maintains three closed qualified defined benefit pension plans, a nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) and a postretirement benefit plan. Vectren's defined benefit pension plans and postretirement benefit plan, which cover the Company's eligible full-time regular employees, are primarily noncontributory. The postretirement

benefit plan includes health care and life insurance benefits which are a combination of self-insured and fully insured programs. Vectren's current and former employees comprise the vast majority of the participants and retirees covered by these plans. Effective in 2021, certain participants of the Vectren Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan and all liabilities and assets associated with the accrued benefits of such participants were transferred to and became participants of the CenterPoint Energy pension plan.

The Company's parents satisfy the future funding requirements for funded plans and the payment of benefits for unfunded plans from general corporate assets and, as necessary, relies on the Company to support the funding of these obligations. However, the Company has no contractual funding obligation to the plans. The Company did not make a contribution in 2021 to the Company's parent for the defined benefit and pension plans. The Company contributed \$1 million in 2021 to Vectren's SERP and post retirement benefit plans. The combined funded status of Vectren's defined benefit pension plans and CenterPoint Energy's pension plan was approximately 100% and 92%, respectively, as of December 31, 2021.

The Company's parent allocates retirement plan and other postretirement benefit plan periodic cost calculated pursuant to GAAP to its subsidiaries, which is also how the Company's rate regulated utilities recover retirement plan periodic costs through base rates. Periodic costs are charged to the Company following a labor cost allocation methodology and results in retirement costs being allocated to both operating expense and capital projects. For the years ended December 31, 2021, costs totaling \$3 million were charged to the Company from its parents.

Any difference between the Company's funding requirements to Vectren and allocated periodic costs is recognized by the Company as an intercompany asset or liability. The allocation methodology to determine the intercompany funding requirements from the subsidiaries to Vectren is consistent with FASB guidance related to "multiemployer" benefit accounting. Neither plan assets nor plan obligations as calculated pursuant to GAAP by Vectren are allocated to individual subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has \$20 million representing defined benefit funding by the Company to Vectren that is yet to be reflected in costs. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has \$17 million included in *Benefit obligations - affiliated companies* representing costs related to other postretirement benefits charged to the Company that is yet to be funded to Vectren. The Company's labor allocation methodology is used to compute the Company's funding of the defined benefit retirement and other postretirement plans to Vectren, which is consistent with the regulatory ratemaking processes of the Company's subsidiaries.

#### Share-Based Incentive Plans & Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company does not have share-based compensation plans separate from CenterPoint Energy.

#### Cash Management Arrangements

The Company participates in the VUHI money pool through which it can borrow or invest on a short-term basis and has long-term borrowing arrangements with CenterPoint Energy. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had borrowings of \$217 million from the VUHI money pool with an interest rate of 0.21% included in *Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies* on the Combined Balance Sheet. See Note 7 for further information regarding long-term intercompany borrowing arrangements.

#### Income Taxes

The Company does not file federal or state income tax returns separate from those filed by its ultimate parent, CenterPoint Energy, or Vectren, prior to the Vectren merger with CenterPoint Energy in 2019. The Company is included in CenterPoint Energy's consolidated U.S. federal income tax return. CenterPoint Energy and/or certain of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in various states. The Company's allocated share of tax effects resulting from it being a part of this consolidated tax group are recorded at the parent company level. Current taxes payable/receivable are settled with the Company's parent in cash quarterly and after filing the consolidated federal and state income tax returns.

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the tax basis (adjusted for related unrecognized tax benefits, if any) of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the currently-enacted statutory income tax rates that are expected to be applicable when the temporary differences are scheduled to reverse. The Company's rate-regulated utilities recognize regulatory liabilities for deferred taxes provided in excess of the current statutory tax rate and regulatory assets for deferred taxes provided at rates less than the current statutory tax rate. Such tax-related regulatory assets and liabilities are reported at the revenue requirement level and amortized to income as the related temporary differences reverse, generally over the lives of the related properties. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Tax benefits associated with income tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return are recorded only when the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is satisfied and measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement. The Company reports interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits within *Income taxes* in the Combined Statement of Income and reports tax liabilities related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of *Other liabilities*.

The Company's gas utilities currently recover corporate income tax expense in approved rates charged to customers. The IURC and the PUCO both issued orders which initiated proceedings to investigate the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) on utility companies and customers within each state. In addition, both Commissions have ordered each utility to establish regulatory liabilities to record all estimated impacts of tax reform starting January 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has \$161 million in liabilities associated with excess deferred income taxes.

In Indiana, the IURC approved a reduction to the Company's current rates and charges, effective June 1, 2018, to capture the immediate impact of the lower corporate federal income tax rate. The refund of excess deferred taxes and regulatory liabilities commenced in January 2019 for the Company's Indiana gas customers.

In Ohio, a rate reduction to the Company's current rates and charges was effective upon the Company receiving approval of new base rates effective on September 1, 2019. In January 2019, the Company filed an application with PUCO in compliance with its October 2018 order requiring utilities to file for a request to adjust rates to reflect the impact of the TCJA, requesting authority to implement a Tax Credit and Savings Rider (TCSR) to flow back to customers the tax benefits realized under the TCJA, including the refund of excess deferred taxes and regulatory liabilities. An order was received July 1, 2020; however, it did not resolve Component D of the TCJA case. As of December 31, 2021, the Company still awaits a ruling on this portion.

The components of income tax expense and amortization of investment tax credits follow:

	Year Ended  December 31, 2021  (in millions)
Current:	
Federal	\$ 11
State	1
Total current taxes	12
Deferred:	
Federal	4
State	5
Total deferred taxes	9
Total income tax expense	\$ 21
Total deferred taxes	<u> </u>

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the effective income tax rate follows:

	Year Ended <u>December 31, 2021</u> (in millions)
Statutory rate	21.0%
Regulatory liability amortization settled through rates	(9.2)
State and local taxes-net of federal benefit	2.6
All other, net	(0.6)
Effective tax rate	13.8%

Significant components of the net deferred tax liability follow:

	As of <u>December 31, 2021</u> (in millons)	
Deferred tax assets:		
Regulatory liabilities settled through future rates	\$	39
Total deferred tax assets	\$	39
Deferred tax liabilities:		
Depreciation & cost recovery timing differences	\$	334
Regulatory assets recoverable through future rates		3
Employee benefit obligations		2
Deferred gas costs		40
Other – net		33
Total deferred tax liabilities	\$	412
Net deferred tax liability	\$	373

#### **Uncertain Tax Positions**

Unrecognized tax benefits were not material to the Company as of December 31, 2021.

The Company's parent and certain of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) is currently auditing Vectren's U.S. federal income 2014-2019 tax returns. The State of Indiana, Vectren's primary state tax jurisdiction, has concluded examinations of Vectren's consolidated state income tax returns for tax years through 2017 with no adjustments. The statutes of limitations for assessment of Indiana income tax have expired with respect to tax years through 2016 except to the extent of refunds claimed on amended tax returns. Tax years through 2018 have been audited and settled with the IRS for CenterPoint Energy. For the 2019-2021 tax years, CenterPoint Energy and its subsidiaries are participants in the IRS's Compliance Assurance Process.

#### 7. Borrowing Arrangements

#### Long-Term Debt

Long-term senior unsecured obligations outstanding is as follows:

	As of December 31, 2021 (in millions)
Fixed Rate Senior Unsecured Notes	
2025, Series E, 6.53%	\$ 10
2027, Series E, 6.42%	5
2027, Series E, 6.68%	1
2027, Series F, 6.34%	20
2028, Series F, 6.36%	10
2028, Series F, 6.55%	20
2029, Series G, 7.08%	30
Total long-term debt - third party	96
Fixed Rate - Affiliated Companies Debt 2023, 3.805%	124
2025, 1.210%	194
2026, 5.102%	60
2028, 3.872%	18
2030, 1.720%	100
2032, 3.315%	25
2035, 5.994%	50
2035, 3.946%	8
2041, 6.062%	35
2042, 5.300%	99
2043, 4.600%	32
2045, 4.400%	118
2047, 3.971%	70
2049, 3,420%	45
2050, 3.920%	75
2055, 4.547%	23
Total long-term debt - affiliated companies	1,076
Total long-term debt outstanding	\$ 1,172

Maturities. As of December 31, 2021, maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

	Third Party (in millions)	Affiliated Companies
2022	•	\$ —
2023	_	124
2024	_	_
2025	10	194
2025 2026	_	60

#### **Debt Guarantees**

The Company jointly and severally guarantees VUHI's outstanding long-term debt, commercial paper borrowing arrangements and \$400 million credit facility. VUHI's third-party long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2021 was \$727 million.

#### Covenants

Long-term borrowing arrangements contain customary default provisions; restrictions on liens, sale-leaseback transactions, mergers or consolidations, and sales of assets; and restrictions on leverage, among other restrictions. Multiple debt agreements of which the Company guarantees contain a covenant that the ratio of consolidated total debt to consolidated total capitalization will not exceed 65 percent. As of December 31, 2021, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.

#### 8. Commitments & Contingencies

#### Commitments

The Company's natural gas supply commitments include minimum purchase obligations. A purchase obligation is defined as an agreement to purchase goods or services that is enforceable and legally binding and that specifies all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Contracts with minimum payment provisions have various quantity requirements and durations and are not classified as non-trading derivative assets and liabilities in the Company's Combined Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021. These contracts meet an exception as "normal purchases contracts" or do not meet the definition of a derivative. Natural gas supply commitments also include transportation contracts that do not meet the definition of a derivative. Costs arising from these commitments, while significant, are pass-through costs, generally collected dollar-for-dollar from retail customers through regulator-approved cost recovery mechanisms.

The Company's minimum purchase obligations for these natural gas supply commitments, which have various quantity requirements and duration are \$122 million in 2022, \$114 million in 2023, \$88 million in 2024, \$71 million in 2025, \$42 million in 2026 and \$151 million thereafter.

#### Asset Management Agreement

The Company entered into a third-party AMA beginning in April 2021 through March 2024 associated with its utility distribution service in Indiana. Pursuant to the provisions of the agreement, the Company either sells natural gas to the asset manager and agrees to repurchase an equivalent amount of natural gas throughout the year at the same cost, or simply purchases its full natural gas requirements at each delivery point from the asset manager. Generally, AMAs are contracts between the Company and an asset manager that are intended to transfer the working capital obligation and maximize the utilization of the assets. In these agreements, the Company agrees to release transportation and storage capacity to other parties to manage natural gas storage, supply and delivery arrangements for the Company and to use the released capacity for other purposes when it is not needed for the Company. The Company may receive compensation from the asset manager through payments made over the life of the AMAs. The Company has an obligation to purchase their winter storage requirements that have been released to the asset manager under these AMAs.

#### Legal and Regulatory Proceedings

The Company is party to various legal proceedings, audits, and reviews by taxing authorities and other government agencies arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, there are no legal proceedings or other regulatory reviews or audits pending against the Company that are likely to have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

#### 9. Regulatory Matters

#### **COVID-19 Regulatory Matters**

For information about COVID-19 regulatory matters, see Note 5 to the combined financial statements.

#### February 2021 Winter Storm Event

For information about the February 2021 Winter Storm Event, see Note 5 to the combined financial statements. The table below presents the incremental natural gas costs included in regulatory assets as of December 31, 2021 as a result of the February 2021 Winter Storm Event and the recovery status as of March 2022.

	Recovery Status	Legislative Activity	As	ssets illions)
CEI North	IURC issued order August 25, 2021. Recovery began	None.	\$	63
	September 2021 with 50% of the February 2021			
	variance recovered evenly over the 12-month period			
	September 2021 to August 2022, with the remainder			
	of the variance recovered through a volumetric			
	per-therm allocation over the same 12-month period.			

Incremental Gas

#### Subsidiary Restructuring

In July 2021, CEI North filed a petition with the IURC for the approval of a new financial services agreement and the confirmation of CEI North's financing authority, and final orders were issued by the IURC on December 28, 2021. CEOH filed a similar application with the PUCO in September 2021 and the PUCO issued an order on January 26, 2022 adopting recommendations by PUCO staff. CenterPoint Energy is evaluating the transfer of CEI North and CEOH from VUHI to CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp. (CERC) in order to better align its organizational structure with management and financial reporting. Both the IURC and PUCO have approved the transaction. As a part of the restructuring, VUHI may approach certain of its debt holders with an offer to exchange existing VUHI debt for CERC debt. The orders allow the reissuance of existing debt of CEI North and CEOH to CERC, to continue to amortize existing issuance expenses and discounts, and to treat any potential exchange fees as discounts to be amortized over the life of the debt. If CenterPoint Energy moves forward with the restructuring, including any VUHI debt exchanges, it is expected to be completed in 2022.

#### CEI North Base Rate Case

On December 18, 2020, Indiana North filed its base rate case with the IURC seeking approval for a revenue increase of approximately \$21 million. This rate case filing is required under Indiana TDSIC statutory requirements before the completion of Indiana North's capital expenditure program, approved in 2014 for investments starting in 2014 through 2020. The revenue increase is based upon a requested ROE of 10.15% and an overall after-tax rate of return of 6.32% on total rate base of approximately \$1,611 million. Indiana North has utilized a projected test year, reflecting its 2021 budget as the basis for the revenue increase requested and proposes to implement rates in two phases. On June 25, 2021, a Stipulation and Settlement Agreement was filed resolving all issues in the case. The settlement recommended a revenue decrease of \$6 million based on a 9.8% ROE and an overall after-tax rate of return of 6.16% on total rate base of approximately \$1,611 million. A settlement hearing was held August 6, 2021. On November 17, 2021, the IURC issued an order approving the settlement. Phase one rates, reflecting actual plant-in-service and cost of capital through June 2021, became effective in November 2021 and phase two rates, reflecting actual plant-in-service and cost of capital through December 2021 with certain adjustments, will become effective in March 2022.

#### **Rate Change Applications**

The Company is routinely involved in rate change applications before state regulatory authorities. Those applications include general rate cases, where the entire cost of service of the utility is assessed and reset. In addition, the Company is periodically involved in proceedings to adjust its capital tracking mechanisms in Indiana (CSIAs) and Ohio (DRR), its decoupling mechanism in Indiana (SRC), and its energy efficiency cost trackers in Indiana (EEFC) and Ohio (EEFR).

The table below reflects significant applications pending or completed during 2021 and to date in 2022 for the Company.

Mechanism	Annual Increase (Decrease) (1) (in millions)	Filing Date	Effective Date	Approval Date	Additional Information  CEI North (IURC)
CSIA	5	April 2021	July 2021	July 2021	Represents an increase of \$37 million to rate base (investment period July 2020 through December 2020), which reflects a \$5 million annual increase in current revenues. 80% of revenue requirement is included in requested rate increase and 20% is deferred until the next rate case, which was filed in December 2020. The mechanism also includes refunds associated with the TCJA, resulting in no change to the previous credit provided, and a change in the total (over)/under-recovery variance of \$6 million annually.
Rate Case	21	December 2020	November 2021	November 2021	See discussion above under CEI North Base Rate Case.
CSIA	2	October 2020	January 2021	January 2021	Represents an increase of \$32 million to rate base (investment period January 2020 through June 2020), which reflects a \$2 million annual increase in current revenues. 80% of revenue requirement is included in requested rate increase and 20% is deferred until the next rate case which was filed in December 2020. The mechanism also includes refunds associated with the TCJA, resulting in an increase of \$(1) million to the previous credit provided, and a change in the total (over)/under-recovery variance of \$(6) million annually.
DRR	9	April 2021	September 2021	September 2021	Represents an increase of \$71 million to rate base for investments made in 2020, which reflects a \$9 million annual increase in current revenues. A change in (over)/under-recovery variance of \$5 million annually is also included in rates.
TSCR	N/A	September 2020	January 2021	January 2021	Application to flow back to customers certain benefits from the TCJA. Impact reflects credits for 2021 of \$(7) million and includes a reconciliation through August 31, 2020 of \$(14) million.

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents proposed increases (decreases) when effective date and/or approval date is not yet determined. Approved rates could differ materially from proposed rates.

#### 10. Environmental and Sustainability Matters

#### Greenhouse Gas Regulation and Compliance

The Biden administration recommitted the United States to the Paris Agreement, which can be expected to drive a renewed regulatory push to require further GHG emission reductions from the energy sector and proceeded to lead negotiations at the global climate conference in Glasgow, Scotland. On April 22, 2021, President Biden announced new goals of 50% reduction of economy-wide GHG emissions, and 100% carbon-free electricity by 2035, which formed the basis of the US commitments announced in Glasgow. In September 2021, CenterPoint Energy announced its new net zero emissions goals for both Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2035 as well as a goal to reduce Scope 3 emissions by 20% to 30% by 2035. The Company's revenues, operating costs and capital requirements could be adversely affected as a result of any regulatory action that would require installation of new control technologies or a modification of its operations or would have the effect of reducing the consumption of natural gas. In addition, the EPA has indicated that it intends to implement new regulations targeting reductions in methane emissions, which are likely to increase costs related to production, transmission and storage of natural gas. Incentives to conserve energy or to use energy sources other than natural gas could result in a decrease in demand for the Company's services. Further, certain local government bodies have introduced or are considering requirements and/or incentives to reduce energy consumption by certain specified dates. These initiatives could have a significant impact on the Company and its operations, and this impact could increase if other cities and jurisdictions in its service area enact similar initiatives. Further, our third party suppliers, vendors and partners may also be impacted by climate change laws and regulations, which could impact the Company's business by, among other things, causing permitting and construction delays, project cancellations or increased project costs passed on to the Company. Conversely, regulatory actions that effectively promote the consumption of natural gas because of its lower emissions characteristics would be expected to benefit the Company. At this time, however, the Company cannot quantify the magnitude of the impacts from possible new regulatory actions related to GHG emissions, either positive or negative, on the Company's business.

Compliance costs and other effects associated with climate change, reductions in GHG emissions and obtaining renewable energy sources remain uncertain. Although the amount of compliance costs remains uncertain, any new regulation or legislation relating to climate change will likely result in an increase in compliance costs. While the requirements of a federal or state rule remain uncertain, the Company will continue to monitor regulatory activity regarding GHG emission standards that may affect its business.

#### Climate Change Trends and Uncertainties

As a result of increased awareness regarding climate change, coupled with adverse economic conditions, availability of alternative energy sources, including private solar, microturbines, fuel cells, energy-efficient buildings and energy storage devices, and new regulations restricting emissions, including potential regulations of methane emissions, some consumers and companies may use less energy, meet their own energy needs through alternative energy sources or avoid expansions of their facilities, including natural gas facilities, resulting in less demand for the Company's services. As these technologies become a more cost-competitive option over time, whether through cost effectiveness or government incentives and subsidies, certain customers may choose to meet their own energy needs and subsequently decrease usage of the Company's systems and services. Further, evolving investor sentiment related to the use of fossil fuels and initiatives to restrict continued production of fossil fuels have had significant impacts on the Company's natural gas business. Any negative opinions with respect to the Company's environmental practices or its ability to meet the challenges posed by climate change formed by regulators, customers, investors, legislators or other stakeholders could harm its reputation.

To the extent climate changes result in warmer temperatures in the Company's service territories, financial results from its business could be adversely impacted. For example, the Company could be adversely affected through lower natural gas sales. Another possible result of climate change is more frequent and more severe weather events, such as hurricanes, tornadoes and flooding, including such storms as the February 2021 Winter Storm Event. To the extent adverse weather conditions affect the Company's suppliers, results from their natural gas business may suffer. When the Company cannot deliver natural gas to customers, or customers cannot receive services, the Company's financial results can be impacted by lost revenues, and it generally must seek approval from regulators to recover restoration costs. To the extent the Company is unable to recover those costs, or if higher rates resulting from recovery of such costs result in reduced demand for services, the Company's future financial results may be adversely impacted. Further, as the intensity and frequency of significant weather events continues, it may impact the Company's ability to secure cost-efficient insurance.

#### Manufactured Gas Plants

Vectren and its predecessors operated MGPs in the past. The costs the Company, as applicable, expects to incur to fulfill their respective obligations are estimated by management using assumptions based on actual costs incurred, the timing of expected future payments and inflation factors, among others. While the Company has recorded all costs which it presently is obligated to incur in connection with activities at these sites, it is possible that future events may require remedial activities which are not presently foreseen, and those costs may not be subject to PRP or insurance recovery.

In CEI North's service territory, the existence, location, and certain general characteristics of 26 gas manufacturing and storage sites have been identified for which it may have some remedial responsibility. A remedial investigation/ feasibility study was completed at one of the sites under an agreed upon order between CEI North and the IDEM, and a Record of Decision was issued by the IDEM in January 2000. The remaining sites have been submitted to the IDEM's Voluntary Remediation Program. CEI North is currently conducting some level of remedial activities, including groundwater monitoring at certain sites

Total costs that may be incurred in connection with addressing these sites cannot be determined at this time. The estimated accrued costs are limited to the Company's share of the remediation efforts and are therefore net of exposures of other PRPs.

The estimated range of possible remediation costs for the sites for which the Company believes it may have responsibility was based on remediation continuing for the minimum time frame given in the table below.

	December 31, 2021	
	(in millions, e	xcept years)
Amount accrued for remediation	\$	3
Minimum estimated remediation costs		2
Maximum estimated remediation costs		15
Minimum years of remediation		5
Maximum years of remediation		20

The cost estimates are based on studies of a site or industry average costs for remediation of sites of similar size. The actual remediation costs will depend on the number of sites to be remediated, the participation of other PRPs, if any, and the remediation methods used.

The Company does not expect the ultimate outcome of these matters to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

#### 11. Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents are estimated to be approximately equivalent to carrying amounts. The carrying amounts of non-trading derivative assets and liabilities are stated at fair value and are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of each debt instrument is determined by multiplying the principal amount of each debt instrument by a combination of historical trading prices and comparable issue data. These liabilities, which are not measured at fair value in the Company's Combined Balance Sheet, but for which the fair value is disclosed, would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

	As of De	As of December 31, 2021	
	(iı	n millions)	
	Carrying Amount	Est. Fair Value	
Long-term debt payable to third parties	\$ 96	\$ 117	
Long-term debt payable to affiliated companies	1,076	1,200	
Cash & cash equivalents	7	7	
Natural gas purchase instrument assets (1)	12	12	

(1) Presented in *Non-trading derivative assets* on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet.

Under current regulatory treatment, call premiums on reacquisition of utility-related long-term debt are generally recovered in customer rates over the life of the refunding issue. Accordingly, any reacquisition of this debt would not be expected to have a material effect on the Company's results of operations.

CEI North entered into two five-year forward purchase arrangements to hedge the variable price of natural gas for a portion of the Company's gas supply. These arrangements, approved by the IURC, replaced normal purchase or normal sale long-term physical fixed-price purchases. The Company values these contracts using a pricing model that incorporates market-based information, and are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Gains and losses on these derivative contracts are deferred as regulatory liabilities or assets and are refunded to or collected from customers through the Company's respective gas cost recovery mechanisms.

#### 12. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The table below provides supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

	Year I December 202 (in miles)	ber 31, 21
Cash Payments/Receipts:		
Interest, net of capitalized interest	\$	44
Income tax refunds, net		(11)
Non-cash transactions:		
Accounts payable related to capital expenditures		25

#### 13. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Management believes that other recently adopted standards and recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

#### 14. Subsequent Events

Management performs a review of subsequent events for any events occurring after the balance sheet date but prior to the date the financial statements are issued. The Company's management have performed a review of subsequent events through March 1, 2022, the date the financial statements were issued.

## INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the three months ended March 31, 2022

#### Contents

	Page Number
Financial Statements (Unaudited)	
<u>Definitions</u>	1
Combined Balance Sheet	2-3
Combined Statement of Income	4
Combined Statement of Cash Flows	5
Combined Statement of Common Shareholder's Equity	6
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements	7-15

#### **DEFINITIONS**

AFUDC Allowance for funds used during construction

ARO Asset Retirement Obligation
ARP Alternative revenue program

ASC Accounting Standards Codification
ASU Accounting Standard Update

COVID-19 Novel coronavirus disease 2019, and any mutations or variants thereof, and related global outbreak that

was subsequently declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization

CSIA Compliance and System Improvement Adjustment

DRR Distribution Replacement Rider

EEFC Energy Efficiency Funding Component
EEFR Energy Efficiency Funding Rider
EPA Environmental Protection Agency

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

2021 February Winter Storm Event The extreme and unprecedented winter weather event in February 2021 resulting in natural gas supply

shortages and increased wholesale prices of natural gas in the United States, primarily due to prolonged

freezing temperatures.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GHG Greenhouse gases

IDEM Indiana Department of Environmental Management

IRS Internal Revenue Service

IURC Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission

MGP Manufactured gas plant

PRP Potentially responsible party

PUCO Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
SERP Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

SRC Sales Reconciliation Component

TBD To be determined

TCJA Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (Unaudited)

	March 31, 2022 (in millions)
ASSETS	(iii iiiiiioiis)
Current Assets:	
Cash & cash equivalents	\$ 1
Accounts receivable - less allowance for credit losses of \$2	134
Accrued unbilled revenues - less allowance for credit losses of less than \$1	76
Material and supplies	19
Natural gas inventory	7
Non-trading derivative assets	28
Taxes receivable	12
Regulatory assets	37
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	6
Total current assets	320
Property, Plant and Equipment:	
Property, plant and equipment	5,151
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization	1,743
Property, plant and equipment, net	3,408
Other Assets:	
Goodwill	199
Regulatory assets	374
Non-trading derivative assets	4
Other assets	24
Total other assets	601
Total Assets	\$ 4,329

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (Unaudited)

		n 31, 2022 nillions)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY	(111 11	imons
Current Liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$	120
Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies		197
Taxes accrued		57
Interest accrued		2
Customer deposits		30
Other current liabilities		39
Total current liabilities		445
Other Liabilities:		
Deferred income taxes		416
Benefit obligations - affiliated companies		19
Regulatory liabilities		767
Other liabilities		89
Total other liabilities		1,291
Long-term Debt:		
Long-term debt - net of current maturities		96
Long-term debt - affiliated companies		1,076
Total long-term debt, net		1,172
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6)		
Shareholder's Equity:		
Common stock (no par value)		792
Retained earnings		629
Total shareholder's equity		1,421
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity	\$	4,329

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ended  March 31, 2022  (in millions)	
Utility revenues	\$	378
Expenses:		
Utility natural gas		176
Operation and maintenance		51
Depreciation & amortization		36
Taxes other than income taxes		20
Total		283
Operating Income		95
Other Income (Expense):		
Interest expense		(11)
Other income, net		4
Income Before Income Taxes		88
Income taxes		19
Net Income	\$	69

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

	March 31, 2022 (in millions)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:	(in ininions)
Net income	\$ 69
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities:	
Depreciation & amortization	36
Deferred income taxes	39
Changes in working capital accounts:	
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net	(25)
Accounts receivable/payable - affiliated companies	(33)
Inventory	7
Accounts payable	(7)
Net regulatory assets and liabilities	61
Other current assets and liabilities	(7)
Other assets and liabilities	3
Net cash provided by operating activities	143
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:	
Capital expenditures	(88)
Net cash used in investing activities	(88)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:	
Decrease in notes payable - affiliated companies	(46)
Dividend to parent	(15)
Net cash used in financing activities	(61)
Net Decrease in Cash, Cash Equivalents	(6)
Cash, Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period	7
Cash, Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$ 1

# INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. COMBINED STATEMENT OF COMMON SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (Unaudited)

	mmon tock	Retained Earnings (in millions	<u>Total</u>
Balance as of December 31, 2021	\$ 784	\$ 575	\$1,359
Net income	_	69	69
Dividends to parent	_	(15)	(15)
Contribution from parent	 8		8
Balance as of March 31, 2022	\$ 792	\$ 629	\$1,421

### INDIANA GAS COMPANY, INC. AND VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY OF OHIO, INC. NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### 1. Organization and Nature of Operations

Indiana Gas Company, Inc. (CenterPoint Energy Indiana North or CEI North) is a public utility that provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers located in central and southern Indiana. Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio, Inc. (CenterPoint Energy Ohio or CEOH) is a public utility that provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers located near Dayton in west-central Ohio. CEI North and CEOH are both direct, wholly owned subsidiaries of Vectren Utility Holdings, Inc. (VUHI). VUHI is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Vectren Corporation (Vectren). Vectren, a wholly owned subsidiary of CenterPoint Energy, Inc. (collectively with its subsidiaries, CenterPoint Energy) and an Indiana corporation, is an energy holding company headquartered in Evansville, Indiana, and was organized on June 10, 1999.

These combined financial statements include the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of CEI North and CEOH and the combined entity is collectively referred to as the "Company." These financial statements have been combined as CEI North and CEOH were under common ownership and management and reflect the Company on a historical basis without pushdown accounting adjustments resulting from the Vectren merger with CenterPoint Energy in 2019.

The Company consists of a single reportable segment which provides energy delivery services to natural gas customers in Indiana and Ohio. The Company's chief operating decision maker views net income as the measure of profit or loss for its reportable segment.

#### 2. Revenue Recognition

#### **Revenues from Contracts with Customers**

In accordance with ASC 606, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or services.

The Company determines that disaggregating revenue into certain categories achieves the disclosure objective to depict how the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

The Company provides commodity service to customers at rates, charges, and terms and conditions included in tariffs approved by regulators. The Company's utilities bill customers monthly and have the right to consideration from customers in an amount that corresponds directly with the performance obligation satisfied to date. The performance obligation is satisfied and revenue is recognized upon the delivery of services to customers. The Company records revenues for services and goods delivered but not billed at the end of an accounting period in Accrued unbilled revenues, derived from estimated unbilled consumption and tariff rates. The Company's revenues are also adjusted for the effects of regulation including tracked operating expenses, infrastructure replacement mechanisms and a decoupling mechanism. The decoupling mechanism is considered an ARP, which is excluded from the scope of ASC 606. Revenues from ARPs are not material to any reporting period. Customers are billed monthly and payment terms, set by the regulator, require payment within a month of billing. The Company's revenues are not subject to significant returns, refunds, or warranty obligations.

The following table disaggregates revenues by major source:

	Three Months End  March 31, 2022  (in millions)		
Revenue from contracts	\$	376	
Other (1)		2	
Total Revenues	\$	378	

(1) Primarily consists of income from ARPs. ARPs are contracts between the utility and its regulators, not between the utility and a customer. The Company recognizes ARP revenue as other revenues when the regulator-specified conditions for recognition have been met. Upon recovery of ARP revenue through incorporation in rates charged for utility service to customers, ARP revenue is reversed and recorded as revenue from contracts with customers. The recognition of ARP revenues and the reversal of ARP revenues upon recovery through rates charged for utility service may not occur in the same period.

Contract Balances. The Company does not have any material contract balances (right to consideration for services already provided or obligations to provide services in the future for consideration already received). Substantially all the Company's accounts receivable results from contracts with customers.

#### 3. Regulatory Assets & Liabilities

#### **Equity Return**

The Company is at times allowed by a regulator to defer an equity return as part of the recoverable carrying costs of a regulatory asset. A deferred equity return is capitalized for rate-making purposes, but it is not included in the Company's regulatory assets on its Combined Balance Sheet. The allowed equity return is recognized in the Combined Statement of Income as it is recovered in rates. The recoverable allowed equity return not yet recognized by the Company is as follows:

	March 31,	2022
	(in millio	ns)
Allowed equity return not recognized	\$	35

The amount of allowed equity return recognized by the Company in its Combined Statement of Income during the three months ended March 31, 2022 was less than \$1 million.

#### February 2021 Winter Storm Event

Amounts for the under recovery of natural gas costs are reflected in regulatory assets on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet. Recovery of natural gas costs within the regulatory assets are probable. The Company has begun recovery of natural gas costs attributable to the February 2021 Winter Storm Event.

The Company deferred under-recovered natural gas cost as regulatory assets under existing recovery mechanisms and are seeking recovery of the increased cost of natural gas. As of March 31, 2022, the Company, through CEI North, has recorded a current regulatory asset of \$27 million associated with the February 2021 Winter Storm Event through the gas cost recovery mechanism.

#### 4. Transactions with Other Vectren Companies and Affiliates

#### **Support Services & Purchases**

Affiliates of CenterPoint Energy and Vectren provide corporate and general and administrative services to the Company and allocates certain costs to the Company. These services are billed to the Company at actual cost, either directly or as an allocation using various allocators, including number of employees, number of customers and/or the level of payroll, revenue contribution and capital expenditures. Affiliates of CenterPoint Energy provide other miscellaneous services, including geographic services and other management support. These services are billed at actual cost, and the charges are not necessarily indicative of what would have been incurred had CenterPoint Energy's subsidiaries not been affiliates. Amounts owed for support services and purchases as of March 31, 2022 are included in Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies.

	March	nths Ended 31, 2022
Corporate allocations included in Operation and Maintenance	(in mi	illions)
expense	\$	14

The table below presents transactions between the Company and its parent, VUHI.

	March	nths Ended 31, 2022 illions)
Cash dividends paid to parent	\$	15
Non-cash capital contribution from parent in payment for property,		
plant and equipment below		8
Payable to parent for property, plant and equipment below		7
Property, plant and equipment from parent (1)		15

(1) Property, plant and equipment purchased for cash from VUHI at its net carrying value on the date of purchase

#### **Retirement Plans & Other Postretirement Benefits**

The Company's net periodic cost, before considering amounts subject to overhead allocations for capital expenditure projects includes the following components relating to pension benefits:

	Three Months Ended  March 31, 2022  (in millions)		
Interest cost (1)	\$	1	
Expected return on plan assets (1)		(1)	
Net periodic cost	\$	_	

(1) Amounts presented in the table above are included in Other income, net in the Combined Statement of Income.

Expected contributions to the postretirement benefit plan are \$1 million during 2022. Expected minimum contributions to the pension plans are less than \$1 million during 2022.

Contributions to the postretirement benefit plan are \$1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. There are no required contributions to the pension plans for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

#### Share-Based Incentive Plans & Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company does not have share-based compensation plans separate from CenterPoint Energy.

#### **Cash Management Arrangements**

The Company participates in the VUHI money pool through which it can borrow or invest on a short-term basis and has long-term borrowing arrangements with CenterPoint Energy. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had borrowings of \$171 million from the VUHI money pool with an interest rate of 0.58% included in Accounts and notes payable - affiliated companies on the Combined Balance Sheet. See Note 5 for further information regarding long-term intercompany borrowing arrangements.

#### **Income Taxes**

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the effective income tax rate follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
Statutory rate	21.0%
Regulatory liability amortization settled through rates	(4.1)
State and local taxes-net of federal benefit	4.3
All other, net	0.4
Effective tax rate	21.6%

Uncertain Tax Positions. The Company had no unrecognized tax positions as of March 31, 2022.

Tax Audits and Settlements. Vectren's pre-Merger 2014-2019 tax years are currently under audit by the IRS. For the 2019-2022 tax years, CenterPoint Energy and its subsidiaries, including the Company, are participants in the IRS's Compliance Assurance Process.

#### 5. Borrowing Arrangements

#### Long-Term Debt

Long-term senior unsecured obligations outstanding is as follows:

	March 31, 2022 (in millions)	
Fixed Rate Senior Unsecured Notes		
2025, Series E, 6.53%	\$	10
2027, Series E, 6.42%		5
2027, Series E, 6.68%		1
2027, Series F, 6.34%		20
2028, Series F, 6.36%		10
2028, Series F, 6.55%		20
2029, Series G, 7.08%		30
Total long-term debt - third party		96
Fixed Rate - Affiliated Companies Debt 2023, 3.805%		124
2025, 1.210%		194
2026, 5.102%		60
2028, 3.872%		18
2030, 1.720%		100
2032, 3.315%		25
2035, 5.994%		50
2035, 3.946%		8
2041, 6.062%		35

	March 31, 2022 (in millions)
2042, 5.300%	99
2043, 4.600%	32
2045, 4.400%	118
2047, 3.971%	70
2049, 3,420%	45
2050, 3.920%	75
2055, 4.547%	23
Total long-term debt - affiliated companies	1,076
Total long-term debt outstanding	\$ 1,172

Debt Guarantees. The Company jointly and severally guarantees VUHI's outstanding long-term debt, commercial paper borrowing arrangements and \$400 million credit facility. VUHI's third-party long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2022 was \$637 million.

Covenants. Long-term borrowing arrangements contain customary default provisions; restrictions on liens, sale-leaseback transactions, mergers or consolidations, and sales of assets; and restrictions on leverage, among other restrictions. Multiple debt agreements of which the Company guarantees contain a covenant that the ratio of consolidated total debt to consolidated total capitalization will not exceed 65 percent. As of March 31, 2022, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.

#### 6. Commitments & Contingencies

#### **Commitments**

The Company's natural gas supply commitments include minimum purchase obligations. A purchase obligation is defined as an agreement to purchase goods or services that is enforceable and legally binding and that specifies all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Contracts with minimum payment provisions have various quantity requirements and durations and are not classified as non-trading derivative assets and liabilities in the Company's Combined Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2022. These contracts meet an exception as "normal purchases contracts" or do not meet the definition of a derivative. Natural gas supply commitments also include transportation contracts that do not meet the definition of a derivative. Costs arising from these commitments, while significant, are pass-through costs, generally collected dollar-for-dollar from retail customers through regulator-approved cost recovery mechanisms.

As of March 31, 2022, minimum purchase obligations are approximately:

	Natural Gas Supply (in millions)
Remaining nine months of 2022	\$ 83
2023	114
2024	88
2025	71
2026	42
2027	28
2028 and beyond	123

#### Legal and Regulatory Proceedings

The Company is party to various legal proceedings, audits, and reviews by taxing authorities and other government agencies arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, there are no legal proceedings or other regulatory reviews or audits pending against the Company that are likely to have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

#### 7. Regulatory Matters

#### February 2021 Winter Storm Event

For information about the February 2021 Winter Storm Event, see Note 3 to the combined financial statements.

#### Subsidiary Restructuring

In July 2021, CEI North filed a petition with the IURC for the approval of a new financial services agreement and the confirmation of CEI North's financing authority, and final orders were issued by the IURC on December 28, 2021. CEOH filed a similar application with the PUCO in September 2021 and the PUCO issued an order on January 26, 2022 adopting recommendations by PUCO staff. CenterPoint Energy is evaluating the transfer of CEI North and CEOH from VUHI to CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp. (CERC) in order to better align its organizational structure with management and financial reporting. Both the IURC and PUCO have approved the transaction. As a part of the restructuring, VUHI may approach certain of its debt holders with an offer to exchange existing VUHI debt for CERC debt. The orders allow the reissuance of existing debt of CEI North and CEOH to CERC, to continue to amortize existing issuance expenses and discounts, and to treat any potential exchange fees as discounts to be amortized over the life of the debt.

#### Rate Change Applications

The Company is routinely involved in rate change applications before state regulatory authorities. Those applications include general rate cases, where the entire cost of service of the utility is assessed and reset. In addition, the Company is periodically involved in proceedings to adjust its capital tracking mechanisms in Indiana (CSIAs) and Ohio (DRR), its decoupling mechanism in Indiana (SRC), and its energy efficiency cost trackers in Indiana (EEFC) and Ohio (EEFR).

The table below reflects significant applications pending or completed to date in 2022 for the Company.

	Annual Increase (Decrease)	Filing	Effective	Approval	
<b>Mechanism</b>	(in millions)	Date	Date	Date	Additional Information
					CEOH (PUCO)
DRR <sub>(1)</sub>	9	April	TBD	TBD	Requested an increase of \$63 million to rate base for investments made in 2021, which reflects a
		2022			\$9 million annual increase in current revenues. A change in (over)/under-recovery variance of
					\$(4 million) annually is also included in rates.

(1) Represents proposed increases (decreases) when effective date and/or approval date is not yet determined. Approved rates could differ materially from proposed rates.

#### 8. Environmental and Sustainability Matters

#### Greenhouse Gas Regulation and Compliance

The Biden administration recommitted the United States to the Paris Agreement, which can be expected to drive a renewed regulatory push to require further GHG emission reductions from the energy sector and proceeded to lead negotiations at the global climate conference in Glasgow, Scotland. On April 22, 2021, President Biden announced new goals of 50% reduction of economy-wide GHG emissions, and 100% carbon-free electricity by 2035, which formed the basis of the U.S. commitments announced in Glasgow. In September 2021, CenterPoint Energy announced its new net zero emissions goals for both Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2035 as well as a goal to reduce Scope 3 emissions by 20% to 30% by 2035. The Company's revenues, operating costs and capital requirements could be adversely affected as a result of any regulatory action that would require installation of new control technologies or a modification of its operations or would have the effect of reducing the consumption of natural gas. In addition, the EPA has indicated that it intends to implement new regulations targeting reductions in methane emissions, which are likely to increase costs related to production, transmission and storage of natural gas. Incentives to conserve energy or to use energy sources other than natural gas could result in a decrease in demand for the Company's services. Further, certain local government bodies have introduced or are considering requirements and/or incentives to reduce energy consumption by certain specified dates. These initiatives could have a significant impact on the Company and its operations, and this impact could increase if other cities and jurisdictions in its service area enact similar initiatives. Further, our third party suppliers, vendors and partners may also be impacted by climate change laws and regulations, which could impact the Company's business by, among other things, causing permitting and construction delays, project cancellations or increased project costs passed on to the Company. Conversely, regulatory actions that effectively promote the consumption of natural gas because of its lower emissions characteristics would be expected to benefit the Company. At this time, however, the Company cannot quantify the magnitude of the impacts from possible new regulatory actions related to GHG emissions, either positive or negative, on the Company's business.

Compliance costs and other effects associated with climate change, reductions in GHG emissions and obtaining renewable energy sources remain uncertain. Although the amount of compliance costs remains uncertain, any new regulation or legislation relating to climate change will likely result in an increase in compliance costs. While the requirements of a federal or state rule remain uncertain, the Company will continue to monitor regulatory activity regarding GHG emission standards that may affect its business.

#### Climate Change Trends and Uncertainties

As a result of increased awareness regarding climate change, coupled with adverse economic conditions, availability of alternative energy sources, including private solar, microturbines, fuel cells, energy-efficient buildings and energy storage devices, and new regulations restricting emissions, including potential regulations of methane emissions, some consumers and companies may use less energy, meet their own energy needs through alternative energy sources or avoid expansions of their facilities, including natural gas facilities, resulting in less demand for the Company's services. As these technologies become a more cost-competitive option over time, whether through cost effectiveness or government incentives and subsidies, certain customers may choose to meet their own energy needs and subsequently decrease usage of the Company's systems and services. Further, evolving investor sentiment related to the use of fossil fuels and initiatives to restrict continued production of fossil fuels have had significant impacts on the Company's natural gas business. Any negative opinions with respect to the Company's environmental practices or its ability to meet the challenges posed by climate change formed by regulators, customers, investors, legislators or other stakeholders could harm its reputation.

To the extent climate changes result in warmer temperatures in the Company's service territories, financial results from its business could be adversely impacted. For example, the Company could be adversely affected through lower natural gas sales. Another possible result of climate change is more frequent and more severe weather events, such as hurricanes, tornadoes and flooding, including such storms as the February 2021 Winter Storm Event. To the extent adverse weather conditions affect the

Company's suppliers, results from their natural gas business may suffer. When the Company cannot deliver natural gas to customers, or customers cannot receive services, the Company's financial results can be impacted by lost revenues, and it generally must seek approval from regulators to recover restoration costs. To the extent the Company is unable to recover those costs, or if higher rates resulting from recovery of such costs result in reduced demand for services, the Company's future financial results may be adversely impacted. Further, as the intensity and frequency of significant weather events continues, it may impact the Company's ability to secure cost-efficient insurance.

#### Manufactured Gas Plants

Vectren and its predecessors operated MGPs in the past. The costs the Company, as applicable, expects to incur to fulfill their respective obligations are estimated by management using assumptions based on actual costs incurred, the timing of expected future payments and inflation factors, among others. While the Company has recorded all costs which it presently is obligated to incur in connection with activities at these sites, it is possible that future events may require remedial activities which are not presently foreseen, and those costs may not be subject to PRP or insurance recovery.

In CEI North's service territory, the existence, location, and certain general characteristics of 26 gas manufacturing and storage sites have been identified for which it may have some remedial responsibility. A remedial investigation/ feasibility study was completed at one of the sites under an agreed upon order between CEI North and the IDEM, and a Record of Decision was issued by the IDEM in January 2000. The remaining sites have been submitted to the IDEM's Voluntary Remediation Program. CEI North is currently conducting some level of remedial activities, including groundwater monitoring at certain sites.

Total costs that may be incurred in connection with addressing these sites cannot be determined at this time. The estimated accrued costs are limited to the Company's share of the remediation efforts and are therefore net of exposures of other PRPs. The estimated range of possible remediation costs for the sites for which the Company believes it may have responsibility was based on remediation continuing for the minimum time frame given in the table below.

	March 31, 2022
	(in millions, except years)
Amount accrued for remediation	\$ 3
Minimum estimated remediation costs	2
Maximum estimated remediation costs	15
Minimum years of remediation	5
Maximum years of remediation	20

The cost estimates are based on studies of a site or industry average costs for remediation of sites of similar size. The actual remediation costs will depend on the number of sites to be remediated, the participation of other PRPs, if any, and the remediation methods used.

The Company does not expect the ultimate outcome of these matters to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

#### 9. Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents are estimated to be approximately equivalent to carrying amounts. The carrying amounts of non-trading derivative assets and liabilities are stated at fair value and are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of each debt instrument is determined by multiplying the principal amount of each debt instrument by a combination of historical trading prices and comparable issue data. These liabilities, which are not measured at fair value in the

Company's Combined Balance Sheet, but for which the fair value is disclosed, would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

	March	March 31, 2022		
	(in m	(in millions)		
	Carrying Amount	Est. Fair Value		
Long-term debt payable to third parties	\$ 96	\$ 109		
Long-term debt payable to affiliated companies	1,076	1,088		
Cash & cash equivalents	1	1		
Natural gas derivative assets (1)	32	32		

#### (1) Presented in Non-trading derivative assets on the Company's Combined Balance Sheet.

Under current regulatory treatment, call premiums on reacquisition of utility-related long-term debt are generally recovered in customer rates over the life of the refunding issue. Accordingly, any reacquisition of this debt would not be expected to have a material effect on the Company's results of operations.

CEI North entered into two five-year forward purchase arrangements to hedge the variable price of natural gas for a portion of the Company's gas supply. These arrangements, approved by the IURC, replaced normal purchase or normal sale long-term physical fixed-price purchases. The Company values these contracts using a pricing model that incorporates market-based information, and are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Gains and losses on these derivative contracts are deferred as regulatory liabilities or assets and are refunded to or collected from customers through the Company's respective gas cost recovery mechanisms.

#### 10. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The table below provides supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

	March 3	Three Months Ended  March 31, 2022  (in millions)		
Cash Payments/Receipts:				
Interest, net of capitalized interest	\$	13		
Non-cash transactions:				
Accounts payable related to capital expenditures		13		

#### 11. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Management believes that recently adopted standards and recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

#### 12. Subsequent Events

Management performs a review of subsequent events for any events occurring after the balance sheet date but prior to the date the financial statements are issued. The Company's management have performed a review of subsequent events through June 1, 2022, the date the financial statements were issued.